# The IAEA's Programme on Environmental Modelling for RAdiation Safety (EMRAS II)

#### **EMRAS II**

Approaches for Assessing Emergency Situations Working Group 9 Urban Areas

# MINUTES

of the First Meeting held at IAEA Headquarters, Vienna 19–23 January 2009

IAEA Scientific Secretary	Working Group Leader
Mr Volodymyr Berkovskyy	
Assessment & Management of Environmental Releases Unit (Room B0764)	Ms Kathleen M. Thiessen
Waste & Environmental Safety Section	Senior Scientist
Division of Radiation, Transport & Waste Safety	SENES Oak Ridge Inc.
International Atomic Energy Agency (IAEA)	Center for Risk Analysis
Vienna International Centre	102 Donner Drive
Wagramer Strasse 5	37830 Oak Ridge, Tennessee
A-1400 Vienna	UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
AUSTRIA	Tel: +1 (865) 483-6111
Tel: +43 (1) 2600-21263	Fax: +1 (865) 481-0060
Fax: +43 (1) 2600-7	Email: kmt@senes.com
Email: V.Berkovskyy@iaea.org	

# **Background**

The EMRAS II Theme entitled "Approaches for Assessing Emergency Situations", includes three areas of interest in connection with emergencies or accidental releases of radionuclides. These areas include urban situations (dispersion and retention of radionuclides in urban environments), environmental sensitivity of various non-urban or rural situations, and tritium accidents. The Urban Areas Working Group (WG 9) intends to continue with and build on the work done by the Urban Remediation Working Group of the first phase of the EMRAS Programme. In particular, the WG 9's goal is to test and improve the capabilities of models used in assessment of radioactive contamination in urban settings, including dispersion and deposition events, short- and long-term contaminant redistribution following deposition events, and potential countermeasures or remediation efforts for reducing human exposures and doses.

#### **Working Group Attendance**

Seventeen participants from 15 countries attended at least some of the sessions of WG 9. Additional participants expressed interest (personal or institutional) in attending future WG 9 meetings. The initial sessions were moderated by Kathleen Thiessen (USA), and Volodymyr Berkovskyy served as the IAEA's Scientific Secretary. Ms Thiessen was selected to serve as Leader of the Urban Areas Working Group (WG 9). A list of the attending participants is provided at the end of these minutes.

# Scope and Objectives of the Meeting

The main objectives of the initial WG 9 meetings, as outlined by the Chairman of the EMRAS II Programme, were to determine the viability of the WG, select a Working Group Leader, and establish preliminary work plans and a schedule for WG 9.

#### **Work Performed**

Part of an early session of WG 9 was spent assessing the interests of participants in specific areas of work (potential modelling scenarios). Most of the time available was spent discussing potential modelling scenarios and making initial plans for development of three scenarios for modelling exercises.

# **Outcomes of the Meeting**

- (1) WG 9 was considered to be viable, both in terms of number of people interested in participating and with respect to interest in a manageable number of modelling exercises.
- (2) Ms Kathleen Thiessen (USA) moderated the initial sessions of WG 9 and was selected by the participants to serve as Working Group Leader for the duration of the programme.
- (3) WG 9 identified three modelling exercises to be developed and carried out by the group:
  - (a) Atmospheric dispersion, short-range;
  - (b) Atmospheric dispersion, long-range; and
  - (c) Contaminant transport and countermeasures.

The short-range atmospheric dispersion exercise will be based on data from experimental explosions contributed by Jiří Hůlka (Czech Republic). This exercise will include comparison of model predictions with measurements for several endpoints, including surface contamination, time-integrated air concentrations, and dose rates. Intercomparisons of model predictions will be possible for additional endpoints, including estimates of a 95% contamination zone, the effects of structures on the predicted dose rates, and validation of location factors.

The long-range atmospheric dispersion exercise will be based on a hypothetical NPP accident and the resulting predicted deposition in an urban environment. Emilie Navarro (France) will provide an accident scenario previously developed in France, and Raúl Periáñez (Spain) will provide relevant geographic data for an NPP in Spain, including nearby urban areas. This will be a model intercomparison exercise for all endpoints, including deposition on a reference lawn surface, deposition on specified urban surfaces and selected locations, and time-integrated air contamination.

The contaminant transport and countermeasures exercise will consider two situations, a defined (hypothetical) radionuclide deposition in part of a city for which detailed geographic and building information is available, and predicted deposition in an urban area from the NPP dispersion exercise. Won Tae Hwang (Republic of Korea) will provide detailed information for an area of Seoul. This will be a model intercomparison exercise for all endpoints, including dose rates, countermeasure effectiveness, doses for specified reference individuals, collective doses, and waste amounts and activities for specified remedial measures.

Initial outlines of all three scenarios were prepared, including the input information to be included and the endpoints for which model predictions will be requested.

#### **Future Plans and Next Meeting**

The preliminary schedule includes an interim Working Group Meeting in Prague (date to be announced). Draft scenarios will be circulated among participants prior to that meeting, for discussion during the meeting. Depending on the development of the scenarios, initial calculations for at least some scenarios are anticipated by the next (Second) EMRAS II Technical Meeting, IAEA Headquarters, Vienna, 25–29 January 2010.

List of Participants		
Name / Email	Organization / Country	
Mr Iurii Bonchuk (bonchuk@rpi.kiev.ua)	Ukrainian Radiation Protection Institute (RPI), Ukraine	
Mr Walter Sergio Cabral Molina (w.cabral@autoridadreguladora.miem.gub.uy)	Autoridad Reguladora Nacional del Ministerio de Industria, Uruguay	
Mr Thomas Charnock (tom.charnock@hpa.org.uk)	Health Protection Agency (HPA), United Kingdom	
Mr Sohan Chouhan (chouhans@aecl.ca)	Atomic Energy of Canada Limited (AECL), Canada	
Mr Juraj Duran (duran@vuje.sk)	VÚJE Trnava, Inc., Slovak Republic	
Mr Jan Helebrant (jan.helebrant@suro.cz)	National Radiation Protection Institute (SÚRO), Czech Republic	
Mr Jiří Hůlka (jiri.hulka@suro.cz)	National Radiation Protection Institute (SÚRO), Czech Republic	
Mr Won Tae Hwang (wthwang@kaeri.re.kr)	Korea Atomic Energy Research Institute (KAERI), Republic of Korea	
Mr Jan Christian Kaiser (christian.kaiser@helmholtz-muenchen.de)	Helmholtz-Zentrum München GmbH, Germany	
Mrs Emilie Navarro (emilie.navarro@irsn.fr)	Institut de Radioprotection et de Sûreté Nucléaire (IRSN), France	
Mr Raúl Periáñez (rperianez@us.es)	University of Seville, Spain	
Mr Gert Sdouz (gert.sdouz@arcs.ac.at)	Austrian Research Centers GmbH (ARC), Austria	
Mr Bliss L. Tracy (BL tracy@hc-sc.gc.ca)	Health Canada, Canada	
Mr Dejan Trifunovic (dejan.trifunovic@dzns.hr)	State Office for Radiation Protection, Croatia	
Ms Catrinel Turcanu (cturcanu@sckcen.be)	Studiezentrum für Kernenergie (SCK/CEN), Belgium	
Mr Juan Tomás Zerquera (jtomas@cphr.edu.cu)	Centro de Protección e Higiene de las Radiaciones (CPHR), Cuba	